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independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Report oﬁ the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAl') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Vikas Publishing House Private
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

Emphasis of Matter — (COVID-19)

We draw attention to note 56 of the accompanying financial statements which described the
uncertainties relating to the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak and management's evaluation of impact on
the operations and the accompanying financial statements of the Company as at the balance sheet
date, the extent of which is significantly dependent on future developments. Our opinion is not modified

in respect of this matter.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors’ Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vikas Publishing House Private
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements. '

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls};

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid

remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vikas Publishing House Private
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Cont’d)

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

e)

f)

9)

ii.

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company, as detailed in note 51 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2022;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022.;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 57(d) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Vikas Publishing House Private
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 57(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: OO1O76N/N5OOO1}V3

-

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 22507892AJLRRA6975

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 May 2022
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we report that:

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
program, certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets
or Intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

(b) The Company has working capital limits in excess of  50.00 million sanctioned by banks based
on the security of current assets. The quarterly returns/ statements, in respect of the working
capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns/ statements are
in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were
subject to audit/review, except for the following:

Name of | Working Nature of Quarter Amount Amount | Difference | Remarks/
the capital current reported as per (% in reason, if
Bank limit assets as per books of | million) any
sanctioned | offered as returns/ accounts
in security statements (®in
million) (T in million)
million)
Inventories 346.40 347.16 (0.76) | Refer
Trade note
Receivables | June 2021 907.16 896.11 11.05 below.
Trade
Payables 155.17 186.19 (31.02)
Inventories 305.74 309.80 (4.06)
Trade September 763.00 |  777.99 |  (14.99)
Receivables 2021
Trade
HDEC 27000 Payables 68.39 123.18 (54.79)
Bank ' Inventories 404 .20 404.20 -
Trade December 82313 |  821.31 1.82
Receivables 5021
Trade
Payables 219.48 278.13 (58.65)
Inventories 271.25 271.25 -
Trade March 102258 | 1018.07 4.51
Receivables
Trade 2022
Payables 234.65 286.15 (51.50)
Inventories 346.40 347.16 (0.76)
Trade
Receivables | June 2021 907.16 896.11 11.05
Trade
Payables 1556.17 186.19 (31.02)
Inventories 305.74 309.80 (4.06)
Trade September 763.00 | 777.99 (14.99)
Receivables 5021
State Trade 68.39 | 12318  (54.79)
Bank of 280.00 |--ayables
india ’ Inventories 404.20 404.20 -
Trade December 82313 |  821.31 182
Receijvables 5021
Trade
Payables 219.48 278.13 (58.65)
Inventories 271.25 271.25 -
Trade March 102258 | 1018.07 451
Receijvables
Trad 2022
rage 23465 | 286.15
Payables
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

Name of | Working Nature of Quarter Amount Amount | Difference | Remarks/
the capital current reported as per (®in reason, if
Bank limit assets as per books of | million) any
sanctioned | offered as returns/ accounts
(X in security statements (Fin
million) (%in million)
million)
Inventories 404.20 404.20 -
Trade
Receivables Degg;ber 823.13 821.31 1.82
Trade
Bandhan 50,00 Payables 219.48 278.13 (58.65)
Bank ) Inventories 271.25 271.25 0.00
Trade March 1022.58 | 1018.07 4.51
Receivables
Trade 2022
Payables 234,65 286.15 (51.50)

Note: Following are the nature of reconciling items between amounts reported as per quarterly returns/ statements and

amounts as per books of accounts:
- Inventories - adjustments on account of sales returns and provision for slow moving/ non-moving items (finalised at

the time of audit/ review completion);
- Trade receivables — on account of exclusion of related party balances, and adjustments related to provision for sales

returns/ discounts (finalised at the time of audit/ review completion); and
- Trade payables — on account of exclusion of payables towards royalty and expenses accrual other than creditors for

printing and purchase of books.

(ii)(a) The Company has provided guarantee to Others during the year as per details given below:

Particulars Guarantee (¥ in million)

Aggregate amount granted during the year:
- Others (fellow subsidiary) 100.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:

- Others (feliow subsidiary) 100.00

(b) Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made and guarantee provided during the year by the Company are not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest. The Company has not given any security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the year.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and principal
amount is not due for repayment currently, however, the receipts of interest are regular,
except for the following instances:
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

Name of the Amount due Due date Extent of delay Remarks (if any)
Entity (2 in million) (in days)
0.38 | 30-Apr-21 336
0.40 | 31-May-21 305
0.39 ] 30-dun-21 275
0.41 31-Jul-21 244 Reasonable steps
BPI (India) 041 | 31-Aug-2f 213 have been taken by
. 0.40 | 30-Sep-21 183
Private the Company for
.- 0.41 31-Oct-21 152
Limited recovery of such
0.40 | 30-Nov-21 122 due amounts
0.42 | 31-Dec-21 91 '
042 | 31-Jan-22 60
0.39 | 28-Feb-22 32
0.43 | 31-Mar-22 1

(d) The total amount which is overdue for more than 90 days as at 31 March 2022 in respect of
loans granted to such companies is as follows:

Particulars Amount No. of Cases Remarks (if any)
(% in million)

Reasonable steps have
been taken by the
Interest 6.37 17 | Company for recovery
of such principal
amounts and interest.

Total 6.37 17

Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of such principal amounts and
interest.

(e) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has fallen
due during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan.

(f} The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan, which is repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments
and guarantees, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction
covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of security.

(v)  Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed
deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a
few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at
the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature | Gross Amount Period to | Forum where | Remarks
the of dues | Amount paid which the | dispute is | (if any)
statute €4 in | under amount pending
million) Protest (¥ | relates
in million)
Income | Income 11.23 - AY 2019- | Commissioner of None
Tax Act, Tax 20 Income Tax
1961 (Appeals)
Delhi Value 5.86 - FY 2017- Assistant
Value Added 18 Commissioner/
Added Tax AVATO
Tax,
2004

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no
utilisation during the current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any
previous years. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(X) (@)The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have
an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act. However, the Company has an internal audit
system which, in our opinion, is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any Core Investment Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviif) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent
amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the expiry of the financial year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

R
Rkl

Tarun Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 507892
UDIN: 22507892AJLRRAB975

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 May 2022
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the

Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note')
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 'ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Vikas
Publishing House Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892
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UDIN: 22507892AJLRRAGI75

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 May 2022
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Balarice Sheet as at 31 March 2022
CIN: U74899DL 1971 CO05766

Notes Asal .
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Assefs
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 3 564.92 588,11
Ripht-of-use asscts 4 97.01 .24
Goodwill 5 - -
Other intangible assets 5 100,34 880
Financial assets
~ Investments 6 84,28 70,00
- Loans 7 45.67 45.67
- Other financial assets 8 19.82 18.04
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 60.18 43.83
Other non-current assets 10 0,39 049
Total non-current assets 979,21 996,18
Current assets
Inventories B! 271.25 346.44
Financial assets
- lnvestments 12 50.53 50.00
- Trade receivables 13 1,018.07 1,183.30
- Cash and cash equivalents t4 244.91 103.47
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15 1,99 3.90
~ Loans 7 6.91 2.53
- Other financial assets 8 2.40 1.66
Other current assets 10 15.1 16,54
Total current assets 1,611.17 1,707.84
Total asscts 2,590,38 2,704,02
Equity and liabilities
Equity share capital 16 1.01 4.01
Other equity 17 153541 1,493.61
Total equity 1,539.42 1,497.62
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 18 247.14 294,44
- Lease liabilitics 19 17.98 35.66
Provisions 20 32.64 2011
Total non-current liabilities 297,76 359.21
Current labilitics
Financial liabilities
- Barrowings 21 30540 434.34
- Lease liabilities 19 2590 19147
- Trade payables 22
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 3899 47.38
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 247.16 235.78
- Other financial liabilities 23 39.29 2021
Other current liabilities 24 18.52 14.75
Provisions 20 34.53 34.18
Current tax liabilities (net) 25 4341 32.38
Total current liabilities 753.20 847.19
Total equity and liabilitics 2,590.38 2,704.02
2

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

— o

Tarun Gupta

Partner
Membership No.: 507892

Place : New Dethi
Date : 23 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited

Bavita Gupta
Director
DIN: 00053988

£ 00054015

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 202

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022

Naveen Rajlani
Chief Executive Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022




Vikas Publishing Hoeuse Peivate Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022
CIN: U74809DLISTIPTCO05766

For the year ended 31

For the year ended

Notes
otes March 2022 3t Mach 2021
I Reveaue from operations 206 1A82.95 1,354.03
11 Otherincome 27 §.04 12,72
1 Total income 1,491,99 1,372,684
IV Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 28 HO01 20497
Purchase of stock-in-trade 29 8818 81.37
Decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 30 80,73 206.21
Employee benefits expense 3 33212 25785
Finance costs 32 7947 9685
Depreciation and amortisation expense kX) 95.18 89,34
Other expenses 34 431,50 335.36
‘Total expenses 1,417.8% 127195
V  Profit before tax 14,10 160.70
VI Tax expenses/ (credit): 35
Current tax 44.04 45.50
Tax relating to earlier years “ 8.73
Defemed tax credit {21.84) (2223
Total tax expenses 22,20 32.06
VI Profit for the year 51,90 68,64
VIII Other comprehensive income (OCH
- Items that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans {2.08) 4,20
Income tax effect 0.52 {1.06)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year 50,37 71,78
X Earnings per equity sharve: 36
(1) Basic 1,293 1,710
(2) Diluted 1,203 1,110
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of (e Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Firm Regjstration No.: 001076N/N5006013
¢

o

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022

Place : New Delbi
Date : 23 May 2022

et

ita Gupta
Director
DIN: 00053988

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022

Naveen Rajlani
Chief Executive Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31 Mureh 2022
CIN: L22219DL1970PLCO05400

(Cin millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Gain on sale of invesiments
Loss on sate of property, plant and equipment (net)
Provision for expected credit loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Unrealised gain on mutual funds
Gain on modification of lease
Amounts written-off’
Amounts written-back
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Decrease i other assets
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Increase in provisions
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in loans and advances
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from operating activitics

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment including capital advances, capital creditors and capital work~in-progress
Purchase of non-current investments
Purchase of current investments
Proceeds from sale of current investments
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Loans given to related party
Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid on borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Repayment of current borrowings (net)
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increasein cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
-On current accounts
- Cheques in hand
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash in hand
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 14)

(This space has been lefi blank intentionally)

74,10 10070
9578 69,34
(0.51) -
7.0 121
742 2182
744 9413
(6.32) (347
(0.02) o.0n
- (5.12)
0.66 7.89
(0.42) (4.03)
249.54 308,46
341
377
16.60 2
1.83 785
7519 224.96
15741 12.13
0.49 8.22
508.24 322,53
(33.01) (2.91)
47523 319.62
(45.91) (17.41)
(14.28) .
(49.98) (50.00)
49.99 .
1.00 3.51
0.25 037
- (45.67)
(58.93) (109,20
(68.79) (88.01)
(97.90) (76.02)
(78.34) 78.63
(29.83) (25.55)
(274.86) (110.95)
141.44 99,47
103.47 4.00
244.91 103,47
213.87 103,33
31.00 .
0.04 0.14
244.91 10347




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the peviod ended 31 March 2022
CINg 1L.22219DL1970PLC 005400

Notes:
1. Reconcitiation of liabilities arising from financing activities (¥ in miliions)
Asat Asat
Partientars ' s ~ensh ¢ s
i 31 March zopg | Gl flows No-cash clianges 31 Mareh 2022
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 30549 (97.90) “ 20759
Curent borrowings 333.29 (78.34) “ Qa5
Lease liabilities (refer note 39) 54,83 {29.83) 18.88 43 88
783,61 (206.07) 18,88 596,42
. As at As at
Pueticutars s 3 cash ¢ s
1 ars 31 March 2020 Cash flows Non-cash changes 31 March 2021
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 47151 (76.02) « 39549
Curent borrowings 254,66 78.63 B 33329
Lease hiabilities (refer note 39) 80.79 (25.55) (0.41) S4.8%
806.96 (22.99) (0.41) 783.61
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

—Toows

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022

TFor and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited

Himayshu Gupta
IXIN/00054015

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022

Bhavita Gupta
Ditector

DIN: 00053988

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022

Naveen Rajlani
Chief Executive Officer

Place : New Delhi

23 May 2022




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the peviod ended 31 Mareh 2022
CIN: UT4899D L1971 PTCO05766

A. Equity shave capital:

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

No, of shavey,

T millions.

=

Asat 3t March 2620 40,140 4,01
ssued during the year - «
As at 31 March 2021 40449 4,01
Issued during the year M P
As at 31 Mareh 2022 40,140 4,01
. Other cquity
Reserves and surplus
Canital . Deented capital Total
Tapita General reserve R“l".““"‘l contribution ow

reserve carnings
As at 31 March 2020 - 46.30 13742 4.41 1,421.83
Profit for the year - - 68.64 - 68.64
Other comprehensive income for the year (net) - - 314 - 344
As at 31 March 2021 - 46.30 1,443.20 4.1 1,493.61
Profit for the year - - 90 - 51,90
Other comprehensive income for the year (net) - - (1.53) - {1.53)
Share based payments/ charge during the year (refer note 17) - - - 3.30 3.30
Capital reserve on business purchase (refer note 37) (11.87) - - - (11.87)
As at 31 March 2022 {11.87) 46.30 1,493.57 741 1,835.41

Summary of significant accounting poticies

w

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.; 601076N/N500013

o

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directars of
Vikas Publishing Iouse Private Limited

W st

Satita Gupta Naveen Rajlani
Director Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00053988

Place : New Delhi Place : New Dethi Place : New Delhi
Date : 23 May 2022 Date : 23 May 2022 Date : 23 May 2022
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2.1

2.2

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Corporate information

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company has head office in Delhi, corporate office in Noida,
Uttar Pradesh and warehouse in Sahibabad, Uttar Pradesh.

The Company is primarily engaged in printing and publishing of college textbooks, school books, and mass market
books and provides job work services to its customers.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and
liabilities:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial

instruments).
ii) Defined benefit liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefit obligation.
itl) Certain financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost.

The financial statements are presented in INR “(Indian Rupees)” or “¥”. All values are rounded to the nearest million,
and two decimals thereof, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when:
» ltis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period




2.3

2.4

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and Habilitics.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identificd twelve months as its operating cycle,

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in ¥, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit or

loss.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

() in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.




2.5

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All assets and liabilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value
measurement as a whole:

e Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the
Company's management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

At cach reporting date, the Company's management analyses the movements in the values of assets and labilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company's management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company's management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compatres the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant

notes.

1. Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (refer note 2.17)
ii. Disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 44)
iii. Investment in quoted equity shares (note 12)

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred o the

customer, i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the carrier for transportation.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of books,
the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-
cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Job work
Revenue from job work services is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the

customer, i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the carrier for transportation or to the customer as per the terms of

the contract.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to customer of cash
rebate/discount if payment is cleared within specified due dates.

s Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates as this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration

that can be included in the transaction price.

¢ Turnover discounts

The Company provides turnover discounts to certain customers once the value of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the
customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the most
likely amount method for contracts with a single-turnover threshold and the expected value method for contracts
with more than one turnover threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable
consideration is primarily driven by the number of turnover thresholds contained in the contract. The Company
then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability

for the expected future discounts.

¢ Cash discounts

The Company provides cash discounts to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated
time given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.
The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises
a refund liability for the expected future discounts.
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. 1f the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in

other income in the statement of profit or loss.
Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used io compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss

¢ Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
Jjoint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced (o the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will atllow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipments are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit

or loss as incurred.

Property, plant and equipments which are not ready for intended use as on the date of balance sheet are disclosed as
capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful

economic lives of the asset. -
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of buildings, plant and equipment, office equipments and computers over estimated useful lives which are
different from useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be
used.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule 11
management
Buildings 40 — 60 years 30 years
Plant and equipments 15— 25 years 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years
Vehicles 8 years 8 years
Office equipments 5~ 15 years 5 years
Electrical installations 10 years 10 years
Computers 3~ 6 years 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less.
Assets costing ¥ 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, cither
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues (o be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made

on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets

Useful lives

Amortization method used

Internally
generated or
acquired

Goodwill

Indefinite

No amortisation

Acquired

Computer software

Finite (6 years)

Amortized on straight line basis
over the period of useful lives

Acquired

Content development (including
In-house contents)

Finite (10 years)

Amortized on straight line basis
over the period of content

Internally generated

Content development
(Translation work in regional
languages)

Finite (3 years)

Amortized on straight line basis
over the period of content

Internally generated

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. Its intention

to complete the asset.

Its ability to use or sell the asset.

How the asset will generate future economic benefits.

The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation
of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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L.eases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments and amounts expected to be paid under

residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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2.10

2.11

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present focation and condition is accounted for as follows:

+ Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

+ Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

+ Stock-in-trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Netrealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of' completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of

profit and loss.
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2.12

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the Jast impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUSs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to geodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind
AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both

holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories;

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains
and losses (debt instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

+ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘Financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit
or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or Joss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)
A “financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

¢ The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and
¢ The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
clected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
>
primarily derecognised (i.c. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required

to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

¢ Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

s L.ease receivables under Ind-AS 116.

¢ Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 115.
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
. Trade receivables, and
o All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

¢ All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and
loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a)  For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
£ross carrying amount.

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e.
as a liability.

¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: Since, financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
amount’ in the OCIL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in

the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss

&
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Re-classification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilitics on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes {0 the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model, The Company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.13  Employee benefits

Employee benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the unconsolidated statement

of profit and loss:
¢ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements; and
+ Net interest expense or income.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

Compensated absences

Entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they acerue to employees. Leave entitlements may be availed while
in service or encashed at the time of retirement/termination of employment, subject (o a restriction on the maximum
number of accumulation. The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis
of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at the year end.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service

is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
fo be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted usin g a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly with
in the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Therefore, in
order to determine the amount to be recognised as a liability or to be disclosed as a contingent liability, in each case,
is inherently subjective, and needs careful evaluation and judgement to be applied by the management. In case of
provision for litigations, the judgements involved are with respect to the potential exposure of each litigation and the
likelihood and/or timing of cash outflows from the Company, and requires interpretation of laws and past legal rulings.

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are
considered contingent assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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Diluted earnings per share are computed and disclosed afier adjusting the effects of all dilutive potential cquity shares,
if any, except when the results will be anti-dilutive.

2.17  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in con formity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent liabilities). The management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgement

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

i) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

For the lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available.

ii) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of books include cash rebates and volume rebates and a right to return the goods that
give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.
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B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arisi ng that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

i) Defined employee benefits plans

The cost of the defined employee benefits obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the
defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the

respective countries.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 38.
iif) Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit [oss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. For details of allowance for doubtful debts please refer note

13.
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iv) Impairment of financial and non-financial assefs

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of cach reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested ind ividually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (‘Cau).

Market related information and estimates arc used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take info account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Company’s Managing Director assesses the financial performance and position of the Company,
and makes strategic decision and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The Company's primary
business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company. As per Indian
Accounting Standard 108, Operating Segments, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, the Company operates in one reportable business segment i.e., publishing of books. The geographical
information analyses the Company’s revenue and trade receivables from such revenue in India and other countries.
The Company primarily operates in India. Refer note 41 for segment reporting.
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2.19  Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

a.

Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments; Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Ind AS 116 Leases
(amendments related to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform)

The amendment to Ind AS 109, provides a practical expedient for assessment of contractual cash flow test, which
is one of the criteria for being eligible to measure a financial asset at amortized cost, for the changes in the financial
assets that may arise as a result of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform, An additional temporary exception from
applying hedge accounting is also added for Interest Rate Benchmark Reform.,

The amendment to Ind AS 107, clarifies the certain additional disclosures to be made on account of Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform:

e the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to
interest rate benchmark reform;

* the entity's progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing the transition;

o the instruments exposed to benchmark reform disaggregated by significant interest rate benchmark along with
qualitative information about the financial instruments that are yet to transition to alternative benchmark rate;

»  changes to entity’s risk management strategy.

The amendments introduced a similar practical expedient in Ind AS 116. Accordingly, while accounting for lease
modification i.e. remeasuring the lease liability, in case this is required by interest rate benchmark reform, the
lessee will use a revised discount rate that reflects the changes in the interest rate.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 116 Leases (amendment related to rent concessions arising due to COVID-19 pandemic)

The amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases extended the practical expedient introduced for financial year 2020-2]
related to rent concessions arising due to Covid-19 pandemic, that provides an option to the lessee to choose that
rent concessions for lease payments due on or before 30 June 2022 (from erstwhile notified date of 30 June 2021 ),
arising due to COVID-19 pandemic (‘COVID-19 rent related concessions’) need not be treated as lease
modification. The amendment did not have any material impact on financial statements of the Company.

Amendments consequent to issue of Conceptual Framework for Financial reporting under Ind AS
(Conceptual Framework)

Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments - Amended the definition of “liabilities’ to ‘a present obligation of the entity to
transfer an economic resource as a result of past events’.

Ind AS 103 Business Combinations - The MCA clarified that for the purpose of this Ind AS, acquirers are required
to apply the definitions of an asset and a liability given in the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with Indian Accounting Standards rather than the Conceptual Framework.

Ind AS 114 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - The amendment added a footnote against the term ‘reliable’ used in
the Ind AS 114. The footnote clarifies that term “faithful representation’ used in the Conceptual Framework
encompas'ses the main characteristics that the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with Indian Accounting Standards called ‘reliability’. However, for the purpose of this Ind AS, the term ‘reliable’
would be basegdlon the i‘equix‘exnellts of Ind AS 8.
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Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The MCA clarified that the definition of term
‘liability” in this Ind AS is not being revised following the revision of the definition of liability in the Conceptual

Framework.

Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets - The MCA clarified that the definition of an ‘asset’ in this Ind AS is not being revised
following the revision of the definition of asset in the Conceptual Framework,

Ind AS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources; Ind AS | Presentation of Financial Statements;
Ind AS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and Ind AS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting - The reference to the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with Indian
Accounting Standards has been substituted with reference to the Conceptual Framework,

The above amendments did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 01 April 2022, as below:

¢ Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework
The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as partofapplying the acquisition method, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the
requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact on its
financial statements.

+ Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipnment amounts
received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an
entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the
amendments to have any impact on its financial statements.

* Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract
The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct fabour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The
amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact on its financial statements.

¢ Ind AS 109 — Annual improvements to Ind AS 2021
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact on its financial statements.
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3 Praperty, plant and ¢quipment

(& in miflions)

Plant and Furnitre aisd Office Fleetrient . ) o
Buildings s Vehicles Computers Fatal
Sauipuents fixtures cquipments _ instabments

Gross block
As at 3t March 2020 218.82 496,81 9,00 12,62 23.55 14.86 43 780.06
Additions B .25 - 0.23 048 - 0.33 229
Disposals » N - (6.42) “ - {0.14) {6.56)
Asat 31 March 2021 218,82 498,06 9,99 6,43 24,03 14,86 4,50 176,69
Additions - 15.80 0.35 - 4.07 - 338 23,00
Disposals (1,75} (9.22) {3.21}) - 8350 - ©A7Y (2316
As at 31 March 2022 21707 504,64 713 6,43 19,59 14,86 T4 77713
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 March 2020 2161 164,70 4.81 3.93 15,13 7.81 L7 59,72
Charge for the year 3.55 20.80 0.86 0.95 234 131 04.90 Riea)
Disposals - - ~ {(L7h - - {0.08) {1,85)
As at 31 March 2021 25,17 125,50 5.67 3,11 17,47 912 2,54 188,58
Charge for the year 3.55 2914 0.86 0.68 243 131 [ 3 38.78
Disposals (0.30) (517 (2.62) - {6.63) - (0.43) {15.15)
As at 31 March 2022 28.42 149,47 3.91 3.79 12,97 10,43 3.22 21221
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 193.65 372.56 4.32 3.32 6.56 5,74 1.96 588.11
As at 3] March 2022 188.65 355,17 3.22 2.64 6,62 443 4.19 564,92
Note - The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and cquipment during the year.

4 Right-of-use assets (ROU)

i millions)
Leasehold Buildings Total
land

Gross block
As at 31 March 2020 65,25 98.40 163.65
Additions - 2.06 2.06
Disposals - {5.69) (5.69)
As at 31 March 2021 65,25 94,76 166.02
Additions - 13.47 13.47
Disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2022 6525 108,23 173,49
Accumulated amortisation
As at 31 March 2020 4.87 23.33 27.90
Amartisation for the year 118 22,70 23.85
Disposals - (2.98) (2.98)
As at31 March 202} 872 43.05 48.77
Amortisation for the year 14 25.96 2710
Disposals - - -
As at31 March 2022 6.87 69.01 75.88
Net block
As at31 March 2021 59.53 S1.71 111,24
As at31 March 2022 58,38 39.22 97.61

Note - The Company has not revalued its Right-of-use assets during the year,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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5 Goodwill and other intangible ssyeds

(o mitlions)

Computer Content

Goadwill software development Toul
Gross block
As at 31 Mavch 2020 2.36 7.32 233,47 2308
Addition B - 18.47 18.47
Disposals (2.30) - (12370 (CENA))
Asat 31 March 2021 - 7,32 239,87 246,89
Additions “ “ 1144 11.44
Disposals - - (10.65) (10,65)
Asat 3l March 2022 - 732 240,36 247.68 3
Accumulated amortisation
As at 31 March 2020 - 4.67 NG 105.68
Amortisation for the year - 0.95 3383 34,78
Disposals - - {1237 (1237
As at 31 March 2021 - 5.62 122,47 128.09
Amortisation for the year - 0.67 29.23 29,90
Disposals - - {10.65) {8.65),
As at 31 March 2022 - 6,29 141,05 147,34
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 - 1,70 117.10 118.80
As at 31 March 2022 - 1,03 99.31 100,34

Impairment testing of goodwill
As required by Ind AS 36 — ‘Impairment of Assets', the Company performs impairment tests on goodwill on an annual basis by computing value-in-use amount for the cash-generating unit (\CGU'). The

management had reviewed the carrying value of its intangibles to estimate the recoverable amounts of these assets, using internal and external information available, basis that management has recorded an
impairment of ¥ 2.36 million in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the previous year.

.
Impairment of content development
During the previous year, the impairment loss of ¥ 4.90 million included in 12.37 million represented the write-down value of centain content development as 4 result of title absolescence. This was

recognised in the Statement of Profit and foss during the previous year,

Note - The Company has not revatued its Intangible assets during the year.
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6 Non-current investments
(& in millions)
As at As ad
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

i) Investment in equity shares (Unquoted), valued at cost
Investment in subsidiarics of its holding company

100 (31 March 2021: 100) shares of € 10 cach fully paid up in M/ Safari Digital Education 0.00 0.00
Initiatives Private Limited
4,900 (31 March 2021: 4,900) shares of ¥ 10 cach fully paid up in M/s New Saraswati House 70.00 70,00
(India) Private Limited
70,00 70.00
i} Investment in equity shares (Unquoted), valued at fair value through profit and loss
1(31 March 2021 Nil) share of ¥ 10 each fully paid up in iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited* 0.01 -
0.01 -
iif) Investment in preference shares (Unquoted), valued at fair value through profit and foss
1,784 (31 March 2021: Nil) Series A compulsorily convertible preference share of 2 10 cach fully 14.27 -
paid up in iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited*
14,27 -
Total 84.28 70,00
84.28 70,00

Aggregate value of unquoted investments
Aggregate value of impairment in value of investments

*During the current year, the Company has acquired 1.50% of shareholding in iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited by acquiring 1,784 compulsorily convertible

preference share and | equity share, both at € 8,000 per share.
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7

Loans
(X in millions)
As at As 1
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current;
Loans to related parties (refer note 40 and 48)* 45,67 45.67
Current:
Loans to related parties (refer note 40 and 48)* 6.91 2.53
Total loans 52,58 48,20
Considered good, unsecured 52.58 48.20
Recoverable which have sipnificant increase in credit risk - -

52.58 48.20

* During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had granted an optionally convertible unsecured loan for business purpose to a fellow subsidiary BPI (India) Private
Limited for three years carrying an interest rate equal o SBI 2 year MCLR plus 250 Bps per annum.

There are no loan or advances in the nature of loans, granted (o promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are cither repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

Amount ofloan or
. Percentage (o the total
advance in the .

Name of the borrower Relationship toans and advances in Terms

nature of loan
. the nature of loans
oufstanding

Repayable after 3 years

BPI (India) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 52.58 100% : N
from effective date

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest on loans has been stipulated and principal amount is not due for repayment currently. During the year, there has been 172
instances of delay in the receipts of interest for months April 2021 to March 2022,

There has been 17 instances of interest overdue for more than 90 days as at 31 March 2022 in respect of loans granted amounting (0 2 6.37 million for the months August 2020 1o
December 2021 (As at 31 March 2021: ¥ 1.59 million for the months August 2020 to December 2020).

Other financial assets
(X in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current:
{Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 17.44 17.28
Margin money deposits (refer note below)
- Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 221 0.76
- Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits (on non-current deposits) 0.17 -
19.82 18.04
Current:
{Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 2.36 1.66
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits (on current deposits) 0.04 -
2.40 1.66
Total 22.22 19.70
Non-current 19.82 18.04
Current 2.40 1.66
Note

i. Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Z 0.10 million (31 March 2021: % 0.08 million) are subject to first charges to secure the Company's bank guarantees.
ii. Margin money deposits with carrying amount of ¥ 0.62 million (31 March 2021: % 0.68 million) is subject to registration of UP VAT and DVAT.
iii. Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of % 1.49 million (31 March 2021: Nil) has been deposited with EPCG.
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9 Deferred taxes

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss nccount in the current year 1062.00 8112
but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent years
Provision for doubtful debt/ advances 24.05 2274
Impact of right of use assets and lease liabilities 17 13.80
Total deferred tax assets 127,22 117,66
Items leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment: impact of differences between tax depreciation and 61.04 73.83
depreciation/amortisation charped in the financial statements
Total deferred tax liabilities 61,04 73.83
Net deferred tax assets 66,18 43.83
Note:
Movement of deferred tax assets tax assets/ Habiities presented in balance sheet ~

As at Recopnised in As at

31 March 2021 Profit and loss [o]os | 31 March 2022

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets
Impact of expenditure charged to the s(a(cmgn(' of profit and loss account in the current year 8112 20.36 0.52 102.00
but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent years
Provision for doubtful debt/ advances 22,74 131 - 24.05
Impact of right of use assets and lease liabilities 13.80 (12.63) - 117
Total deferred tax asscts 117.65 9,04 0,52 127,22
Items leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment: impact of differences between lax depreciation and 73.83 (12.79) - 61,04
depreciation/amortisation charged in the financial statements
Total deferred tax liabilities 73.83 (12,79) - 61.04
Net deferred tax assets 43.82 21.84 0.52 66,18

As at Recognised in As at

31 March 2020 Profit and loss (814 31 March 2021
Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets
Impact of expenditure charged to the stmemc.n{ of profit and loss account in the current year 657 75.61 (1.06) 8112
but atlowed for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent years
Provision for doubtful debt & advances 20.18 2.56 - 22,74
Impact of right of use assets and lease liabilitics 20.33 (6.53) - 13.80
Impact of business loss to carry forward to next years 49.28 (49.28) - -
Total deferved tax assets 96.36 22.36 (1.06} 117.66
1tems leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment: impact of differences between tax depreciation and 7370 o3 7383
depreciation/amortisation charged in the financial statements - o ; o
Total deferred tax labilities 73.70 0.13 - 73.83
Net deferred tax assets 22.66 22.23 (1.06) 43.83
Note- Refer note 35 for effective tax reconciliation,
10 Other assets
( in millions)
As at As at

& In millions)

As it
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

ftems leading to creation of deferred (ax nssels

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Prepaid expenses 0.39 0.49
0.39 0.49
Current

(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances to vendors 5.07 57
Advances to employee 3.26 3.44
Prepaid expenses 6.78 739
15.11 16.54
Total 15.50 17.03
Non-current 0.39 0.49
15.11 16.54

Current
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11 Inventorics

2 milliony)

Agat
S8 Marveh 2022

Asoat
A1 Mareh 2021

Raw materials (at cost)

Printing material

Work-in-progress

Finished goods (at towar of cost and net reatisabie vitlue)
Total

Current investments

~

24,80
2013
143
224,59

2,28

31644

{in mitlions)

Tnvestment valued at faiv value through profit and loss

Investment in mutun! funds (quoted)

159.724 (31 March 2021: 15,610.861) units in SBI Liquid Fuad Regular Growth
17,560.694 (31 March 2021: Nil) wnits in $BI Magnum Low Duration Fund Regular Growth
Total

Aggregate book value of quoted imvestments

Aggregate market value of quoted investments

Aggregate value of impairment in valuc of investments

* fair value gain recopnised ¥ 0,02 million (31 March 2021 Nil).
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13 Trade reccivables
(T in millions)
Az As
31 Mareh 2002 31 Mareh 2021
Trade receivables
Secured, considered pood - “
Unsecured, considered good 1,018.07 1,183.30
Receivable which have sipnificant increase in credi risk 05,55 89.92
Receivable credit impaired - -
1,113.62 1,273.22
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Secured, considered good - N
Unsecured, considered good - -
Receivable which have significant increase in eredit risk (95.53) (89.92)
Receivable credit impaired - -
(95.55) (89.92)
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good £,018.07 1,183.30
Receivable which have significant inerease in credit risk - -
Receivable credit impaired - -
1,018.07 1,183.30
Trade receivables from related partics (refer note 40) 298,98 373.53
The movement in impairment of trade receivables as follow:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance §9.92 79.71
Additions (net) 7.82 27.82
Write off (net of recovery) (2.19) (17.67)
Clesing balance 95.55 89.92
No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Trade receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months to 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
months year years
Undisputed trade receivables
considered good 969.54 41.39 7.14 - - 1,018.07
which have significant increase in credit risk - 0.91 33.07 23.77 37.80 95.55
credit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables
considered good - - - - - -
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - -
Total trade receivables 969.54 42,30 40.21 23.77 37.80 1,113.62
Less: Loss allowance - (0.51) (33.07) 23.77) (37.80) (95.55)
Total 969.54 41.39 7.14 - ~ 1,018.07
As at 31 March 2021 i
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months to 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
months year years
Undisputed trade receivables
considered good 980.64 137.56 65.10 - - 1,183.30
which have significant increase in credit risk - 2,77 44.33 16.81 26.01 89.92
credit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables
considered good - - - - - -
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - -
Total trade receivables 980.64 140,33 109.43 16.81 26.01 1,273.22
Less: Loss allowance - 2.77) (44.33) (16.81) (26.01) (89.92)
Total 980.64 137.56 65.10 - - 1,183.30
There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
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14 Cash and cash equivalents

(@ in millions)
Asw As at
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

Balances with banks:
- On current accounts

= Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand
Total

[

213.87 103.33
31.00 B
0.04 0,14
244,91 103,47

Bank balances other than cash and eash equivalents

(¥in millions)
As at As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months

Total

1.99 3.90

199 3.90
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16 Equity share capitad

As at

31 Mareh 2022 3t Mareh 2021
Authorised
65,000 (31 March 2021 65,000 equity shares of € 100/ each 6,50 6.50
Issued, subscribed and fully paid cquity capital
40,140 (31 March 2021: 40,140 equity shares of ¢ 100/ cach 4,01 4,01

4,01 4.0
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares oulstanding at the beginning and at the end of (he reporting year

Authorised share capital No, of shures L in miltions
As at 31 March 2020 05,000 6.50
Increase/(decrease) during the year - “
As at 31 March 2021 65,060 6.50
Increase/(decrease) during the vear - .
As at 31 March 2022 65,000 6.50
Issued equity capial No, of shares in millions
Equity share of ¥ 100/~ each issued, subscribed and fulty paid (31 March 2021; Equity share of ¥ 100/~ cach)
As at 31 March 2020 40,140 4.01
Issued during the year w“ .
As at 31 March 202! 40,140 4.01
Issued during the year - .
As at 31 March 2022 40,140 4.01

b, Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par vatue of & 100 per shave (31 March 2021: € 100 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled (o one vote per share. No dividend has been
proposed by Board of Directors during the year ending 31st March 2022 ( 31st March 2021 NIL). In the event of tiquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution wilt be in proportion to the number of equity shares hetd by the sharcholders.

¢ The Company has not issued any share pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash in the current year and preceding five years, The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor has
there been any buy-back of shares in the curvent year and preceding five years.

d. Details of sharcholders hotding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 Marceh 2021
No, of shares % of holding Na. of shares % of holding
S Chand And Company Limited 39,339 98.00% 39,339 98.00%

¢. Details of shares held by promoters (Holding Company and subsidiary of Holding Company) in the Company

As at31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No, of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding % change in
shareholding
S Chand And Company Limited 39,339 98.00% 39,339 98.00% 4.00%
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 801 2.00% 801 2.00% 0.00%
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17 Other equity

(L in milliony)

As af

3 March 2022

As
31 Marceh 2021

General reserve
Balance as the beginning of reporting year
Balance as the end of veporting year

Retained carnings

Balance as the beginning of reporting year

Add: Profit/(loss) for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (net)
Balance as the end of reporting year

Deemed capital contribution

Balance as the beginning of reporting year

Add: Compensation option granted during the year- charge for the year (refer nole 53)
Balance as the end of reporting year

Capital reserve

Balance as the beginning of reporting year
Created during the year (refer note 37)
Balance as the end of reporting year
Total

Nature and purpose of reserve

General reserve
General reserve represents amount appropriated out of retained carnings.

Retained earnings

46.30 16.30
46,30 46.30
1,443.20 1,371.42
51.90 68.64
(1.53) 3.14
1,493.57 1,443.20
401 A1l
3.30 -
7.41 411
(1.8 -
(11.87) -
1,535.41 1,493.61

Retained earnings refer to the net profit/(loss) retained by the Company for its core business activities. Also includes re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans,

Deemed capital contribution

Deemed capital contribution represents Employee stock option (ESOP) cost allocated by the Holding Company for stock options issued fo employees of the Company.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve created during the year on account of purchase of press business from the Holding Company. The same was accounted for as common control

transaction as per guidance available in Appendix C of IND AS 103, Refer note 37.
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18  Non-current borrowings

(X in millions)

As
31 Mureh 2022

As ai
31 Mareh 2021

Term loans

Foreign currency loan from bank (refer note below)

Inctian rupee loan from banks (refer note b and ¢ below)

Indian rupee loan from (inancial institutions (refer note d below)

Vehicle loans
Indian rupece loan from bank (refer note ¢ below)

Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 21)
Term loans

Foreign currency loan from banks

Indian rupee loan from banks

Indian rupee loan from financial institution

Vehicle loans
Indian rupee loan from banks
Total

Secured

- 50.00
134.62 144.46
162,97 20094

- 0.09
297.59 395,49
- 50.00
11.99 12.50
3846 38.46
- 0.09
50.45 101.05
247,14 294,44
247.14 294.44

Unsecured

Nature of Security

Terms of repayment

Term loans from banks and financial institutions

a. The Company has taken foreign currency term loan from RBL Bank Limited in FY 2018-19 which is secured by
first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire current assets inclusive of stock and book debts, both
present and future, first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire movable fixed assets, both presemt
and future (excluding those exclusively charged to other lenders) and corporate guarantee of S Chand And
Company Limited. Interest is to be paid on monthly basis, Principal and interest both are fully hedged by RBI
Bank Limited. The same has been completely repaid during the year ended 31 March 2022

b The Company has taken loan against property from Deutsche Bank in FY 2018-19 which is secured by equitable
morigage of property bearing no. E-28, Sector -8, Noida (U.P.).

¢ The Company has taken mortgage loan form Indian Bank in FY 2019-20 which is secured by equitable mortgage
on industrial property owned by the holding company S Chand And Company Limited, situated at 40/2A,
Sahibabad Industrial Area - Site - IV, Sahibabad (U.P.). The loan is also secured by personal guarantee of two
directors, Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala and corporate guarantee of S Chand And
Companv Limited.

d  The Company has taken Indian rupee term loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited in FY 2019-20
which is secured by equitable mortgage on industrial property situated at 20/4, Sahibabad Industrial Area, Site -
1V, Sahibabad (U.P.), corporate guarantee of S Chand And Company Limited and personal guarantec of Mr.
Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala.

Vehicle loans from banks
e The Company had taken vehicle loan from HDFC Bank Limited and ICIC] Bank Limited and the same are secured by

hypothecation of respective vehicle. The same has been completely repaid during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Loan covenants

Repayable in 12 quarterly installments of T 12.50
millions beginning from January 2019,

Rate of interest at 9.95% p.a.
(31 March 2021: 9.95% p.a.)

Repayable in 120 equated monthly installments of 2
0.69 millions beginning from March 2019,

Rate of interest at 9.05% to 9.50% p.a.
(31 March 2021: 9.05% t0 9.75% p.a.)

Repayable in 120 equated monthly instalments of 2
1.42 millions beginning from April 2020,

Rate of interest at 10.65% p.a.
(31 March 2021: 10.65% to 11.05% p.a.)

Repayable in 78 cqual monthly installments of 2
3.21 millions plus interest beginning from October
2019.

Rate of interest at 10.00% to 11.00% p.a.
(31 March 2021: 11.00% p.a.)

Repayable in 36 to 60 equal monthly installment of
20.02 to % 0.04 millions.

Rate of interest at 9.26% to 9.50%
(31 March 2021: 9.26% to 9.50%)

f  The Company is required to comply with certain debt covenants as mentioned in the loan agreement for term loans, failure of which makes the loan to be repaid on demand
at the discretion of the bank. During the current financial year, there have been no default in repayment and no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowings.

g The money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.
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2

2.

Lease Habilities

Non-curvent lease linbility (rofer note 39) f7.08 3566
Curren-tease liability (refer note 19) 2590 1917
4348 LY A]

Provisions
@ n ittong)
As al Asar
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2001

Non-current

Pravision for gratuity (refer note 38) 2389 2.1
Provision for compensated abscnces RI3 034
3264 2901
Current
Provision for compensated absence 0.67
Provision for continpency (refer note 55) 1351
3408
Totat 4717 63,29
Non current 32.64 2941
Current 3453 3418
Current borrowings
(2 In miilions)
As at
31 Mareh 2021
Cash eredit
Indian rupce loan from bank (refer note a below) 254.93 (8320
Working capital demand loan
Indian rupee loan from bank (refer note b below) - 13000
Curvent maturities of non-current horrowings (refer note 18) $0.45 10108
‘Total current borrowings 30540 434,34
Secured 0540 43434
Unsccured - -
Note :-

Cash credit from State Bank of India, Bandban Bank, HDFC Bank, DBS Bank, RBL Bank and Standard Chartered Bank are secared by way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing and futwre curcemt assets and movable fixed
asscts of the Company (excluding assets which are specifically charged to oher lenders), corporate guarantee of § Chand And Company Limited and personal guarantee of Mr. Himanshy Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Komar Thonjhauwats,
Directors of the Company. These loans cany interest rate of 7.90% to 10.70% pa. (31 March 2021: 7.90% ta 11.50% p.a.). State Bank of India had taken over the cash credit facility of DBS Bank, RBL Bank aed Standard Chartesed
Bank during the year 2020-21,

cluding assets which are specifically
. These foans cany interest rate of

Working capital demand loan from HDEC Bank, has been secured by way of first pari passu charge on the entise existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company (e
charged to other lenders), corporate guarantee of § Cland And Company Limited and personal gumantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jumghnuwala, Ditcctors of the Compan;
8.10% 10 9.25% p.a. (31 March 2021: 8.75 % to 10.70% p-a.). The loan has been fully repaid during the corrent year,

The funds raised by the Company on shott term basis have not been utilised for loug tern purposes.

Trade payables

 in millions)
Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payables of micro enterprises and smatl enterprises {refer note 46) 3899 4738
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises® 247.16 235.78
286,15 283,16
* Includes amount due to related parties (refer note 46) 0.10 -
Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan 1y 1.2 eals More than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2022:
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro entemrises and small enterpriscs 38.99 - - - 38.99
Others 242.81 0.79 0.56 3.00 247.16
281,80 0.79 0.56 3.00 286,15
1) Disputed trade pavables
Microcenterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total wrade payables 281.80 0.79 .56 3.00 286.15
As at 31 March 2021:
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 46.53 0.85 - - 47.38
QOthers 227.47 3.26 2.27 2.78 235.78
274.00 4.1f 2,27 2.78 283.16
b) Disputed trade pavables
Micro enterprises and smal enterprises - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total trade payables 274.00 4.11 2,27 2.78 283.16

There are no unbilled trade pavables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
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23 Other financial liabilities

{2 i miltion

hvterest accrued but not duc on borrowinps
Payable to employees

Current
Non current

24 Other current liabilities

Asat Asat
S0 Mapeh 2
167 442
3762 2479
39,29 421
39.29 39,31

(X dn mit

As
S1.March 2022

Asat

Revenue received in advance [X) .56

Statatory dues 17229 1319
18,52 IENE
25 Curcent tax Habilities (net) (X in miitions)

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 Mavch 202)
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 4344 3

4341 32,38
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26 Revenue from operations

(X in mitlions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
3 March 2021

Sale of products

Finished goods (net of returns)
Traded goods (net of returns)
Less: Discounts

Sale of services
Job work
Royalty income

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales

Total

India
Outside India
Total

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time
Services transferred at a point in time
Total revenue from operations

1,424 45 1,313.42
101,13 7214
(325.19) (222.14)
246.01 16373
3.87 10.39
32.68 17.99
1,482.95 1,354,93
1,482.95 1,354.93
1,482,95 1,354.93
1,233.07 1,180.81
249.88 174.12
1,482.95 1,354.93
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The Company colleets goods and service tax (GS'T) on hehalf of the Government on sale of eerfain books and on services, Henee, GST is not included in

revenue from contracts with customers.

Contract balances

For the year ended 31
March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Contract lability
Revenue received in advanee (refer note 24)

Opening balance of contract liabilities

Less: Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilitics

Add: Addition in balance of contract habilities for current year (net of refunds)
Closing balance of contract liabilities

Right fo return asset and refund liability

1.23 1.56
1.56 16.14
(1.56) (16.14)
1,23 1.56
1.23 1.56

For the year ended 31
March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Refund liabilities
Arising from discounts
Arising from rights of re(urn

204.23 172.63
301.34 255.55
505.57 428.18

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

For the year ended 31

March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments

Sales return

Discount

Performance obligation

Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Manufactured goods/ Traded goods

2,201.94 2,010.05
(393.80) (432.38)
(325.19) (222.74)
1,482.95 1,354.93

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods to the transporter designaled by the customer or to the customer whichever is earlier.

The customer has an right to return material to an extent as may be agreed upon with each customer or within the limits as may be determined by the
Company. The customer is also eligible for turnover and additional discounts based on achievement of revenue targets as may be agreed.

Services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the job work goods to the customer.
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27  Otherincomes

(X in milliony)

For the year ended 31
Mareh 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest income on:
-on bank deposit *
-on others *
Insurance claim received
Lease rental income
Amounts written back
Miscellaneous income

* underlying assets on which income is recognised are carried at amortised cost.

0.25 0.37
5.54 2713
0.65 2.14

- 117
0.42 4.03
2.18 7.28
9.04 17.72
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28 Cost of raw material consumed

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

Cost of paper consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Cost of printing material and consumable consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Total cost of raw material consumed

14.46 44.81
192,49 110.12
206.95 154,93
(24.80) (14.46)
182,15 140.47

25.53 25.39
123.06 64.64
148.59 90.03
(20.73) (25.53)
127.87 64.50
310.61 204.97

29 Purchase of stock-in-trade

(R in millions)

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Purchase of stock-in-trade

88.18

81.37

Total

88.18

81.37
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30 Decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-pro XI"CSS
£ 3
(3 in II]““()IIS)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Inventory at the end of the year
Finished goods 224,59 306.23
Work-in-progress 113 0.22

22572 306,45
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 306.23 507.81
Work-in-progress 0.22 4.85

306.45 512,66
Changes in inventories 80.73 206.21

31  Employee benefits expense
(X in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 306.12 234.31
Contribution to provident and other funds 17.33 20.28
Employee stock option expenses 3.30 -
Staff welfare expenses 5.37 3.26
Total 332.12 257.85

32  Finance costs
(¥ in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest expense

- on borrowings 59.90 79.18
- on lease liability 541 5.37
- on other liabilities 6.13 9.58
- on income tax delayed payments 3.45 -
Processing and other charges 4.28 2.72
Total 79.17 96.85

33 Depreciation and amortisation expense
(X in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 38.78 30.71
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 5) 29.90 34.78
Amortisation on right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 27.10 23.85
Total 95.78 89.34
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34 Other cxpenses

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2022

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

Publication expenses

Royalty expenses 29.14 30.28
Printing and binding expenses 10015 49,30
Other publishing expenses 14.88 17.14
Power and fuel 43.86 29.95
Repairs and maintenance- machinery 36.59 23.76
Total (A) 225.62 150,44
Others
Rent (refer note 39) 0.47 117
Repairs and maintehance
- Buildings 0.90 0.37
- Others 18.06 16.22
Insurance 12.96 11.94
Rates and taxes .16 1.38
Legal and professional fee 1578 12.64
Donation 12.50 6.53
Payment to auditor (refer note b below) 2.30 2.04
Amounts written off 0.66 7.89
Provision for expected credit loss 7.82 27.82
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 7.01 1.21
Management expenses (refer note a below) 14.44 11,68
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 45) 1.02 2.80
Director sitting fees 0.24 0.12
Advertisement and sales promotion 6.1 5.26
Freight and cartage outward 37.52 3127
Travelling and conveyance 36.09 17.96
Packing and dispatch expenses 20.69 18.80
Miscellancous expenses 10.55 7.83
Total (B) 206.28 184.92
Total other expenses (A+R) 431.90 335.36
Notes:

a. Management expenses
The Holding Company renders various administrative and management services (o its subsidiaries companies to facilitate its day to day operations. Accordingly,
the Holding Company has charged ¥ 14.44 million (31 March 2021:  11.68 million) towards such services rendered during the year ended 31 March 2022,

b. Payment to auditors:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

As auditor:

- Audit fee 1.40 1.20

- Limited review fee 0.80 0.80
In other capacity

- Certification fee - 0.03

- Out of pocket expenses 0.10 0.01
Total 2.30 2.04
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35 Incometax

Tax expense vecognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (% In millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2022 31 Mareh 2021

Current tax:
Current income tax charge 44,04 45.56
Adjustiment of taxes for carlicr years - 873
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (21.84) (2223

22.20 32.06

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Accounting profit before tax 74.10 100,70
Atlndia’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2021: 25.168%) 18.65 25.35
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 4.28 501
Other adjustments (0.72) 1.70
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 22.20 32,06
At the effective income tax rate of 29.96% (31 March 2021: 31.83%) 2220 32.06

36 Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during

the year.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted carnings per share,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations
(X in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 51.90 68.64
Wexglltcd avq‘age number of equity shares used for computing Earning per Share 40.140.00 40.140.00
(Basic and Diluted) ,
Basic EPS (Amount in ¥) 1,293 1,710
Diluted DPS (Amount in %) 1,293 1,710
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38

Purchase of press from § Chand And Company Limited
During the current year, the Company has purcl

contral transaction and has been accounted as per Appendix C of IND AS 103+ Business Combinations, The Company acquired ¥ 17,76 millions
consideration of €29.63 millions and the difference has been recopnised s capital reserve amounting to € (11.87) millions,

Employee henefits

Defined contribution plan

An amount of ¥ 15.92 million [31 March 2021 : % 13.18 million] for the year has been recognised us an expense in re
amount of ¥ 0.98 million [31 March 2021 : ¥ 0.84 million] for the year has been recognised as an ex

ased the printing press business from s Holding Company i.e., S Chid And Company Limited. The same qualifies as o common
of net assets apainst the purchase

spect of the Company's contributions towards Provident Fund, an
pense in respect of Company's contributions towards Employee State Insurance

and an amount of ¥ 0.43 million [31 March 2021 : ¥ Nil] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company's contributions towards National Pension Schene,
which are deposited with the government authorities and have been included under employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Gratuity Act, employees are entitled o specific benefit at the time of
retirement or termination of the employment on completion of five years or death while in cmployement. The level of benefit provided depends on the member’s length of service and

salary at the time of retirement/termination age.

Under the Company's gratuity plan, every emplayee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last dr:
year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a maximum of ¥ 2.00 million. The scheme is funded with an insurance comp:

policy.

awn salary for cach completed
any in the form of qualifying insurance

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for Gratuity Plan,

Statement of profit & loss account
Net employee benefit expiense recognised in employee cost:

(Xin millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Current service cost
Interest cost on defined obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Amount recognised in Other Compreliensive Income:

441 1.81
2.05 1.88
(0.49) (0.43)
5.97 6.26

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligation
Actuarial gains / (losses) on assets

Balance sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2.12 (3.72)
0.07 0.48
2.05 (4.20)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid from plan assets
Benefits paid directly by employer
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation
Closing defined benefit obligation

Non-current
Current

29.84 28.04
441 181
2.05 1.88

(0.84) (0.21)

(1.90) (0.96)
2.12 (3.72)

35.68 29.84

35,68 29.84

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Opening fair value of plan assets
Expected retumn

Contributions by employer
Benefits paid

Actuarial gain

Closing fair value of plan assets

Provision for gratuity (net of plan assets)
Non-current
Current

The expected contribution to the defined benefit plan in future years Z 1.18 millions ( 31 March 2021: Z 0.57 millions).

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

7.07 6.37
0.49 0.43
5.00 -

(0.84) 021
0.07 048

11.79 7.07

23.89 2077
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The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fadr value of total plan assets ave as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Investments with insurer 100% 100%
The ¢c ic and demographic ptions used in determining pratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
For the year ended For the yemr ended
31 Maryeh 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Discount rate 7.31% 6.94%
Expected rate of return on assets 1.31% 6.94%
Expected rate of salary increase 6% 6%
Retirement ape (in years) 60 years 60 years
Employee turnover :-
- Age upto 30 yewrs ; 3.00% 3.00%
~ Age 31 - 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
- Age above 44 years : 1.00% 1.00%
Mortality rate TALM (2012-14) TALM (2012-14)
Ultinate Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The impact of sensitivity analysis due to changes in the significant actuarial assux ptions on the defined benefit obligations is given in helow table:
Change in For the year ended For the year ended
assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate + 1% 31.89
-1% 40.11
Expected rate of salary increase 4 1% 39.94 33,86
- 1% 31.98 26,38

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Investment risk:
For finnded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the Hiabiity. In such cases,
the present value of the assets is independent of the firture discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the

discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Market risk (interest risk):

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets, The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in
discount rate leads to decreasc in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the
valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Longevity risk:
‘The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before refirement age or afler. Typically for the benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity

risk is not very material.

Actuarial risk:
Salary increase assumption
Actual salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase to the obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Attrition/withdrawal assumption
If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rates, the benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Similarly if the actual withdrawal rates are lower than assumed, the

benefits will be paid later than expected. The impact of this will depend on the demography of the company and the financials assumptions.
Regulatory risk:

Any changes to the current Regulations by the Government, will increase (in most cases) or decrease the obligation which is not anticapated. Sometimes, the increase is many fold
which will impact the financials quite significantly.

The following ave expected future cash flows to the defined benefit plan:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Year | 1.18 0.57
Year 2 0.96 0.99
Year3 1.19 0.67
Year 4 2.70 1.30
Year$S 3.60 2.39
Year 6 to 10 10.71 10.40
77.18 66.54

Above 10 years

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 16.90 years (31 March 2021: 17.50 years).
Other long-term employee benefits

An amount of ¥ 2.76 millions (31 March 2021 :  1.93 millions) pertains to expense towards compensated absences and is included in "employee benefits expense”.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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39 Leases

led 31 Margh 2022

(Linniflions)

Lollowing are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assels

Year ended
1 Marvch 2022

Year ended
3L Muareh 2021

Balance at the beginning of reporting year 11124 13575
Additions (refer note 4) 1347
Deletions “ 272
Amortisation (refer note 4) (27.10) {23.85)
Balance at the end of veporting year 97.61 111,24
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease Habilities (ineluded under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) sad the movements during the period;
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance as at the beginning of reporting year 54.83 80,79
Additions 13.47 2.06
Accretion of interest 5.41 537
Deletion during the year - (2.72)
Gain on lease modification® - (5.12y
Payments (29.83) (25.55)
Balance as at the end of reporting year 43.88 54.83
Non-current 17.98 35.66

2590 1947

Current

*During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had moditied one lease of Sahibabad warehouse due to wihich company has recorded the gain ¥ 5,12 miltions
recorded under the head other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss by using the practical expedient available as per para 46A of IND AS 116,

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities

and the same has been

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

- Within one year 25.90 1947

- 1-5 years 17.98 35.66

- More than 5 years - «
43.88 54.83

The following are the r ised in Statement of Profit or Loss:

For the year ended

31 Maych 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Depreciation expense of riglt-of-use assets 27.10 23.85
Interest expense on fease liabilities 5.41 537
Expense relating to other than non-current leases (included in other expenses) # 0.47 117

32.98 30,39

Total anount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

Lease payments not recognised as a liability

The Company has elected not to recognise a lease liability for current leases (leases with an expected term of 12 months or less) or for leases of low value assets. P
leases are expensed on a straight-line basis. The Company does not have any liability to make variable lease payments for the right-to-use the undertying

# Total cash outflow for current leases and leases of low value for the year ended 31 March 2022 was 2 0.47 millions (31 March 2021 : % 1,17 millions).

The table below deseribes the nature of the Company’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet:
No of right-of- Range of

use assets

i

wyments made under such
asset recognised in the financials,

remaining term

Average remaining

lease term

No of teases with
extension options

No of leases with
termination options

leased (in years)
Buildings
~31 March 2022 9 0-3 years 113 9 None
-31 March 2021 8 0-4 years 1 8 None
Land
~31 March 2022 2 53 years 5269 None None
~31 March 2021 2 54 years 54.45 None None

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension options as detailed above. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset

portfolio and align with the Company business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termin

exercised.

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obli

due.

The aggregate depreciation on Right-of-use assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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40 Related party disclosure

a. Names of related parties and related party relationship
Related parties where control exists

Holding company

Yellow subsidiaries company

Associate of Holding company

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Enterprises over which Key Management
personnel or their relatives exercise
significant influence

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Ms. Savita Gupta

Mr. Himanshu Gupta

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Mr. Gaurav Jhunjhouwala

Ms. Archana Capoor

Mr. Rajagopalan Chandrashekar
Mr, Naveen Rajlani

§ Chand And Company Limited

Chhaya Prakashani Limited

New Saraswati House (Indin) Private Limited
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

Safari Digital Education Initintives Private Limited
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited

Blackie & Son (Calewtta) Private Limited

BPI (lndia) Private Limited

13S Digital Private Limited

5. Chand Edutech Private Limited

Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited
Edutor Technologies India Private Limited (with effect from 31 August 2020)
Convergia Digital Education Private Limited

Smartivity Labs Private Limited
Edutor Technologies India Private Limited (upto 31 August 2020)

Hotel Tourist (Partnership firm)
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited
Shyam Lal Charitable Trust

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Exccutive Director
Non-Lixecutive Director
Non-Executive, Independent Director
Non-Ii
Chief Executive Officer

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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b. Details of related party transactions and balances

(T in millions)

Particulars

Year Ended

Total

Nature of transactions

Revenue from operations
Sale of products and services
S Chand And Company Limited

S. Chand Edutech Private Limited

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

BPI (India) Private Limited

DS Digital Private Limited

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

Convergia Digital Education Private Limited

Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Limited

Chhaya Prakashani Limited

Sale of products (traded goods)
New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Limited

Chhaya Prakashani Limited

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 202]

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

193.38
141.01

5.16
2.53

63.61
31.52

2.08
3.74

0.01
0.08

1.15
46.45

18.63

0.09

23.10
19.79

53.49
42.61

Subtotal

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

360.61
289.19
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b. Details of related party transactions and balances

(X in millions)

Particulars

Year Ended

Total

Other income
Royalty received

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

31 March 2021

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 0.31
31 March 2021 0.54

Interest income

BPI (India) Private Limited 31 March 2022 4.87
31 March 2021 2.73
31 March 2022 5.18

Subtotal 31 March 2021 3.27

Expenses

Purchase of paper

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited 31 March 2022 -
31 March 2021 0.82

Purchase of goods (books)

Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31 March 2022 7.16
31 March 2021 4.19

Purchase of services

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 241
31 March 2021 5.44

Edutor Technologies India Pvt Ltd 31 March 2022 1.13
31 March 2021 -

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2022 8.42
31 March 2021 11.12

Management expenses

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 14.91
31 March 2021 11.26

Rent paid

31 March 2022 0.75

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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b. Details of related party transactions and balances

(R in millions)

Subtotal

31 March 2021

Particulars Year Ended Total

Printing business acquisition

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 3179
31 March 2021 -

Royalty paid

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 0.10
31 March 2021 0.27

BPI (India) Private Limited 31 March 2022 0.32
31 March 2021 0.42

Remuneration paid (including perquisite) *

Naveen Rajlani 31 March 2022 14.02
31 March 2021 8.69

Savita Gupta 31 March 2022 0.39
31 March 2021 2.29
31 March 2022 81.39

Subtotal 31 March 2021 44,51

Expenses incurred by the related party on behalf of the Company

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 0.02
31 March 2021 0.03

Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31 March 2022 -
31 March 2021 1.31
31 March 2022 0.02

Subtotal 31 March 2021 1.34

Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of the related party

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 0.58
31 March 2021 -
31 March 2022 0.58

Subfotal 31 March 2021 -

Purchase of property, plant and equipments

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31 March 2022 5.26
31 March 2021 -
31 March 2022 5.26
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b. Details of related party transactions and balances

(R in millions)

Particulars

Year Ended

Total

Sale of property, plant and equipments
S Chand And Company Limited

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

Subtotal

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

Balances outstanding

Assets

Investments

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

70.00
70.00

0.00
0.00

Subtotal

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

70.00
70.00

Trade receivables
S Chand And Company Limited

S. Chand Edutech Private Limited

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

BPI (India) Private Limited

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

Convergia Digital Education Private Limited

Chhaya Prakashani Limited

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

112.57
132.14

13.13
10.32

72.92
149.80

493
3.81

0.06
76.61

95.37

0.85

Subtotal

31 March 2022
31 March 2021

298.98
373.53
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b. Details of related party transactions and balances

(X in millions)

Particulars

Year Ended

Total

Loans

BPI (India) Private Limited 31 March 2022 52.59
31 March 2021 48.20
31 March 2022 52.59

Subtotal 31 March 2021 48.20

Liabilities

Trade payables

Edutor Technologies India Pvt Ltd 31 March 2022 0.10
31 March 2021 -

31 March 2022 0.10

Subtotal

31 March 2021

* Does not include gratuity, since the provision is based upon actuarial for the Company as a whole.

Terms of conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those
that prevail in arm's length transactions. The settlement of outstanding balances as at year end occurs in cash.

Refer note 51 for guarantees given to bank on behalf of fellow subsidiaries.
Refer notes 18 and 21 which describes borrowings that are secured against the personal guarantees from certain

directors.
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41 Operating segments arc reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chicf operating decision maker, The Company's Mansging Direclor assessos the

4

by

financial performance and position of the Company, and makes stategic docision and has been identificd as the ehief oporating decision maker, The Company's primary buginess
segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company. As per Indian Accounting Standard 108, Operating Segnients, as notified under the Comparnics
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company operates in one reportable business segment ie., publishing of books. The geopraphical information analyses the
Company’s revenue and trade receivables from such revenue in fndia and other countrics. The Company primarily operates in India.

Financial Instruments:- Financial rislomanagement objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables . ‘The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments in equity shares, advances to related party, trade and other reeeivables, secwrity deposits, cash and short

term deposits that are derived direatly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks and advises on financial risks and
the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the shareholders that the Company’s financial risk activitics are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives, The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk
Mavket risk is the rigk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

The Company is exposed to following type of market risk:-

a.) interest rate risk,

b.) foreign currency risk: and

c.) other price risk

Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and investments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments

in foreign cuirencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2022,

The analyses exclude the impact of niovements in market variables on: the carrying values of employee benefits provisions, The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the

effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

Interest rate risk.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the

risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with fixed interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity (o a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, afler the impact of hedge
accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in - Effect on profit before  Effect on cquity

basis points fax (OC1H)
As at3l March 2022
INR Borrowings +0.50% 127 -
-0.50% 1.27 -
Asat3l March 2021
INR Borrowings +0.50% (1.67) -
-0.50% 1.67 -

. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company daes not hedge its foreign currency exposure, however the sensitivity analysis is given as below for the for the currencies, in which Company has foreign exposure:

Changes in foreign  Effect on profit before  Effect on equity

currency rates tax OChH

For the year ended 31 March 2022
usb +5% 0.00 -
-5% (0.00) -
GBP +5% 0.04 -
-5% (0.04) -

For the year ended 31 March 2021
UsD +5% 0.00 -
-5% (0.00) -
GBP +5% 0.02 -
-5% (0.02) -

Refer note 52 for unhedged foreign currency exposure.
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¢. Other price risk
The Company’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertaintics about future values of the investment seeuritics.
‘The price risk related to investment in mutual fund schemes is not significont considering the refatively short tenure of underlying portfolio of the mutual fund schemes in which the
Company has invested,
The following table summarises the sensitivity to change in the price of investment in unlisted equity securitics (other than investment in subsidiaries of | lolding Company) held by the

Company:
< A Effect on profit
Changes in prices

hefore tax

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Unlisted equity instruments +15% 204
-15% .14
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Unlisted equity instruments +15% -
-15% -

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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B. Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financint loss. The Conipany 15 not exposed to nny sigtificin
credit risk from its operating activities (exeept trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maxinium credit risk exposure,

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net) before adjustment of expected eredit loss provision of € 95.55 millions (31 Mar 2021 ¢ 89.92 million) o of the reporting date is s follows:
(T in millions)

Age Bracket Less than 6 months 6 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Movre than 3 years Total

Asat 31 March 2022

Trade reeeivables (gross) 969.54 42,30 40.21 2377 37.80 1,113,62
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - 000 (33.07) (2377 (37.80) (95.55)
Trade receivables (net) 969.54 41.39 114 - - 1,018.07
Expected credit loss % 0.00% 245% 82.24% 100.00% 160.00% 8.58%
As al 31 March 2021

Trade receivables (gross) 980.64 140.33 109.43 16.81 26.01 1,273.22
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - .17) (44.33) (16.81) (26.01) (89.92)
Trade receivables (net) 980.64 137.56 65.10 - - 1,183.30
Expected credit loss % 0.00% 1.97% 40.51% 100.00% 100.00% 7.06%

The movement in the allowance for expected credit loss in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 89,92 79.77
Expected credit loss during the year (net of reversal) 5.63 10.15
95.55 89,92

Balance at the end of the year

o

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
‘The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, and bank loans. The Company's approach to managing
liquidity 1o ensure , as far as possible, that it will have sufficient tiquidity to meet its liability when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without ncurring unaceeptable losses
or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. The Conpany manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, borrowing liabilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financial assets and labilities. It maintain adequate sources of financing
including loans from banks at an optimised cost. The table below provides the details regarding contractual maturities of financial liabilities.

(& in millions)
Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

On demand

- Borrowings (excluding curvent maturities of non-current borrowings) 254.95 333.29
254.95 333.29
Less than 1 year
- Borrowings (current maturities of non-current borrowings) 3045 101.05
- Lease liabilities 25.90 19.17
- Trade payables 286.15 283.16
- Other financial liabilities 39.29 29.21
401.79 432.60
Movre than I year
- Borrowings 24714 294.44
- Lease Liabilities 17.98 35.66
265.12 330,10

® in millions)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

240.57 219.20

Details of fund based undrawn facilities of the Company from banks and financial institutions:

Term loans (including vehicle loans)
Working capital demand loans and cash credit
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43 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves altributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary

objective of the Company™s capital mranagement is to maximise the shareholder value

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by o sound capital
position. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company maonitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital phus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio less than 30%. The Company
measures underlying net debt as total liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any dues to subsidiasies or group companies less cash and cash equivalents. For the
purpose of capital management, total capital includes issued equity capital, share preminm and all other reserves attributable to the cquity holders of the Company, as applicable,

Company's adjusted net debt ta equity ratio as at 31 March 2022 is as follow: (R in millions)

R K As at Asat
Gearing Rat
earing Fatio 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Borrowings (note 18 and 21) (including current maturities) 552.54 72878
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 14) (244.91) (103.47)
Less: Investment in liquid funds (note 12) (50.53) (50.00)
Adjusted net debt (A) 257,10 575,31
Equity 1,539.42 1,497.62
Total equity (B) 1,539.42 1,497.62
Total equity and net debt [C = (A+B)] 1,796.52 2,072,93
14.31% 21.15%

Gearing ratio (A/C)

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-beating loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to mmediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches
in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the cwirent period.

No changes were made in the objectives, palicies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,
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44 Fair values
The caimying values of financinl instruments by categorics is ns ey

Farticajars =
Assets
Non-current financial assets
« Investments 00 1428 » 70,00 * &
- Loans 4567 » - 45,67 . .
- Other financist asscts 19.82 - - 18.04 - .
Current finuncisl assets
~ Investments - 50.53 - - 30,00 -
- Trade regcivables LU1L7 . i 1183.30 - -
~ Cash and cash cquivalents 2449k - “ o 16347 . B
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis . 1% . - 39 . «
« Loans . 6N - - 2.53 - -
- Other financial asssts 240 - - 1.66 - »
Non-current financial Habititics
« Borrowings 24714 - . 294.44 . «
- Leasc labilities 1798 - - 35.06 - B
Current financial Habilities
- Borrowings 305.40 - - 434.34 - -
- Leasc liabilities 2590 - . 12.17 - -
- Trade payables 286.15 - - 283,16 . .
- Other financiat liabikitics 39.29 . . L2902 - .

The following assumptions/ methods were used to estimate the falr values:

i) The fair values of rade reced cash and cash equi other carvent fimanciol nsseis, trade payable and other current financinl liabifitics are considered to be sams as their carrying vatues due o their shert torm muurc
ii)) Fair valuc of quotcd financial instraments is bascd on quotod market price al the rcpcnma date.

iii.) The carying amowunt of other items carricd a1 ized cost are i of their foir volue. .
iv) The fair valuc of the financial asscls and Liabilities is inchuded at the amount at which (ke i coultd be ina current ion between willing pastics, other than in & forced or liquidation sale. The fair values of the quoled noles and bonds
are bascd on price quotations at the reposting date.
Quated prices in Siguificant mﬁf‘ nc“;’
active markets  obscrvable inputs m’;:v: o
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level
Assets measured at fair vafuc: L
Investments 50.53 - R 14.28
(&.inmillions).
Falr yalue measiecmsnt saing .
Quoted pricesin  Significant s“"“"“‘;
active markets  observable inputs in’;:: ©
{Revel 1) {Leved 2} (Leved 3)
Asscts measured at fair vatoe: .
Invesimenis 000 - -
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Fair values
Name of secutities As at As at Valuation techniques/ methodology Unobservable input
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Investments in quoted financial 5053 50.00 |The fair valnes are based on guofed markel prices as at the|Not applicably
tinstruments (Level 1) reporting date, .
Investments in unguoted equity 14.28 ~ |Price of recent Investment (PRI method). This is the {ransaction price  of]
linslruments (Level 3) Linvestment madenear tovearend, |
45 Corporate Social Respongibility .
@ in millions) .
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2001
(8) amount required to be spent by the Company during the year, 079 236
(b) amount of expenditure incurred,
(i) Construction/acquisition of an assct - .

- (i) On purposes other than (i) above 102 280
(c) shorifali at the end of the year, - -
(d) total of previous years shortfal, - -
(¢) reason for shortfaf], : Not applicable Not applicable
{) nature of CSR activitics Note'a Note b
{g) details of related party transactions ) Not applicable Not applicable
() wherea provision is made with respect 1o & lability incurred by entering intoa 1 obligation, the in the provision during the Not applicable Not applicable
year should be shown scparately. : . .

- Notes:

) The Company has madc contribution lo\vnrds training of tcachers to Indian Councit of School Learning amourting to ¥ 0.50 millions and ¥ 0.52 miltions to Shyam Lal Charitable Trust for promotion of cducation,
b) The Company has made ibution towards ion of cducation to Ryan Fe ing to ¥ 2.50 mitfion, T 8,30 spent directly for promotion of education.
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w
S

Dues to Micro, small and wedivm enterprises us defined under the MSMED Aci, 2006

As
30 Mprsh 2022

As at
AL Mareh 2021

Fhe principat tonount and the intereat due thercon (o be shown sepatately) remaming anpaid to sy supplicr s st the end of eadh ACCONRKNR Yo

- Principal amount due to micro and swall eoteprises
- Interest due on above

The amount of intevest paid by the buyer in tersus of seetion 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 slong with the amotnts of the payment made to the supplice beyoad the appainted day duing cagl accounting year

The smount of interest duse and payable for the period of delay i making payment iwhich have been paid but beyand te appointed day during the year) but without adding the intereat specilied undes the
MSMED Act 2006,

s ahove are actuaily paid to the smatl el

The amount of frther interest remaining due and payable even in the suceceding years, udd such date when te interest dues for thie purpose of disadlowance as

4 deductible expendituse under seation 23 of the MEMED Act 2006

Note: The above information has been determined to the extent such piutics have been identified on the basis of information provided by the Company, which has been 1clied upon by the auditors

The Government of India announced the New Bducation Poticy (NEP) 2020 on 31 July 2020, 1o bring in various changes to (he Education systens. The Nutional Cusriculum Framework (NCE) thist detines the cunvienlum to be tanght in schools is yo
i of the policy and the revised cuvicutum and detiled assessment shall be niade, onee canmicuium gets fonmolated

be formulated based on NEP, which is expected to be developed over the period The iy ng the

Disclosure required under See 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

iR Uy 4738

Included in loans and advanee are eertain foans the paticulars of which e disclosed below as required by Ses 186(:4) of € Al 2013
Purpose Rate of Interest Tenure Secured! 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
unsecured
B3P} fndia Private Limited Business pupose 9.70% ps 3 years Unsecured 3159 48.20
52,59 48.20

Analytical ratios

Key financial ratios Numerator Denominator As at 31 March  As at 31 Murch % Variance
W22 2021
@ Carrent rutio Cunvent asyels Current Habilities 244 202 6%
b, Debt-equity ratio Fotal delst Shascholder's equity 036 0.49 ~26% Refer
©. Debt service caverage ratio Eamings available for debt sevice 1ebt service L7 1.31 -16%
(Profit after taxes + Non-cash {nterest and lease payments + Principal repayments)
operating expenses ke depreciation and vther amortisation +
interest 4 other adjustments like foss on sale of property, plant and
equipment ete.)
d. Return on equity Profit after taxes Average sharcholder’s cquity % 3% -21% Refer b
<. Inventory tumover Ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory 155 1.07 44% Refer ¢
£ Trade receivables tmover ratio Revenue from operations Average trade reecivables 1.35 113 W%
8. Trade payables wmaover ratio Net purchases Average trade payables 1.42 .65 1% Refer d
I Net capital wnover ratio Revenue from operations Average working capital 173 1.82 -5%
1. Net profit ratio Profit after taxes Revenue from aperations 2.356% 3.07% -31% Refor b,
J- Return on capital employed Eaming before interest and taxes Capital emplayed 8.24% 9.78% -16%
(Tangible net worth + Total debty
k. Refum on investorent * Change in fair value of quoted Opening value of quoted non-current - - -
non-current invesiments nvestients
* All noncurrent investments of the Company are in unquoted securities. thus reported as Nil.
Reasons for variance
a. Decline dae 1o repavment of exisling borrowings
b. Reduced profitability owing to higher employee and general administrative costs.
¢ Reduced inventory fevels owing to planned inventory as per in hand orders, particutary during peak scason
d. Irpact of reduced inventory levels and better liquidity position as a result of improved realisation from customers.
Summary of quarterly statements to banks
The Company is regular in submission of monthly statements of curvent assets with banks for the borrowings sanctioned against security of such assets.
Below table represents the summary of reconciliation of the quarterly statements filed by the Compaay with banks:
& in millions)
t 2
Nature of current rc’)‘o,:'lli‘:]"a:s)cr Amount as per Differences
Quarter Name of Banks Working capital limit assets offered as L:atcmcntls books of accounts (A) - (B)
security (B) {refer note below)
Ay
June 2021 HDFC Bank 270.00 |Inventories 346.40 347.16 0.76)
State Bank of India 280.00{ Trade receivables 907.16 896.11 t1.05
Trade payables 15517 186.19 31.02)
September 2021 HDFC Bank 270.00|Inventories 30574 309.80 (4.06)
State Bank of India 280.004 Trade receivables 763.00 77799 (14.99)
Trade pavables 68.39 123,18 (34.79)
December 2021 HDFC Bank 270.00|Inventories 404.20 404.20 ~
State Bank of India 280.00{ Trade receivables 823.13 821.31 1.82
Bandlian Bank 90.00{ Trade pavables 219.48 278.13 (38.65)
March 2022 HDFC Bank 270.00 |Inventories 271.25 271.25 -
State Bank of India 280.00} Trade receivables 1,022.58 1.018.07 4.31
Bandhan Bank 90.00( Trade payables 234.65 286.15 {51.50

Note: Following are the nature of reconciling items between amounts reported as per quauterty statements and anounts as per books of accounts

a. lnventories - adjustments on account of sales retums and provision for slow moving/ non-moving items (finalised st the time of audit/ review completion)

b. Trade receivables ~ on account of exclusion of related party balances, and adjustments related ta provisicu for sales retarus’ discounts (finatised at the fime of audit/ review completion; and
<. Trade payables -on account of exclusion of payables towards royalty and expenses accrual other than creditors for printing and purchase of boaks.

The paticulacs of securities provided and amounts reported in the quarterly statements age in accordanee with terms of sanction for borrowings with respective banks.
The above information has been determined to the extent information available with the Company, which has been relied upon by the auditors.
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51 Comti Habilides and

A, Contingent labilities
(i) Clahms ugainst the Company not acknowledged as dehis

i irllhinng),

As at At
31 Mareh 2022 JE Mareh 2021

Clalms made by direct tax authorities:
Incotze Tax dentand (cefer note 'a” bekowy

Others:
Fixport obligation outstanding (refor note 'b* heknw)

(i) Guarantess

1123 e

220 20

A at As @

Caporate puarantee refer note ‘¢’ bejow)

a The Company has received an intimation ander s
11.23 million between self ass
CpC

=

o

have been fted with Hon'ble Supreme
impact. Management believes that this

etion 143(1) of Income T

Hon'ble Supreme Court of India has pronounced a ruling dated 28 February 2019 in which it is held that *allowance’

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and |

3

Act, with the demand of ¥ 9.71 million whereas the Company has claimed the refund of @ 1
essiment in Incame tax retun and assesspient 4 per Income tax CPC. The major reason for difference is due 1o the wiong tax vate charged by CPC. The Company has filed tie appeat with CIECAY for the retilication in
ssment and the Company believes that CIT (A) will alfow the sppeal and comect the deamaund notice.

The Company has the export obligation outstanding against which the Company had saved the impat duty of 2 2,20 miltion (31 Mareh 2021 : 2 2.20 mitfion).

Corporate pusrantee includes guarantees piven by the Company to banks and financial institations against loans taken by the folfow subsidinies

Ty provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent labilities where

52 milfion in {ncon

0 its standal

ax el for AY 2019-20. There 1s a diffe

S Marsh 2022 3 March 2003
134 80

30.00

of T

aid to employees, will be ineluded in the senpe of "basic wages” and thus, witl be subject W provident fund contribtions Petitions
Court of India seeking additional clavification with respect to the upplication of this vuling. As this raling has not preseribed any clarification w.r.4. to its application, the Company is in the process of evatualing ifs
will ot result in any material liability on the Company.

financial The Company also

belicves that the above issues, when finally scttled. are not tikely 1o have any significant impact on the finanvial position of the Company. The Company docs nat expect any reimbinsements in respect of the above contingent liabilities

B. Commitments

(X in milligny)

Relating to export promolion capital gaods commitment

52 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

The amount of foreign cveney exposure that are not hedged by derivative instrument or othenvise as on 31 Masch 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as under.

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2024
2048 2048
(%I Miltion)

Foreign curreney

Antount in foreipn curvency

Amount in INR

31 Mureh 2022

31 March 2021

31 March

20224+ 31 Marel 20214

de pavables
Trade payables

*++xchange Rate for 31 March 2022, 1 GBP = R5.99.30
hange Rate for 31 March 2022, 1 USE 5.64
¥ixchange Rate for 31 March 2021, 1 GBP = Rs.100.83
*Eixchange Rate for 31 March 2021, 1 USD = Rs.73.29

£,

Refer note 42 for seasitivity analy

GBe
usp

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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s fectissiliabregrouped vortsin previous vear's balanees

S Pursuant o changes notified i Sehedule-IH, during the yearended 31 Mareh 2022, the Company b

55 The Shareholders of Vikas Publishing House Private Limsited @ransters) and Rajendra Ravindia Trinter Private Liniited anitern) (RRPL), 4 subsidiary of 8 Chand And Campany Limsted (SCCLY, had approved o seheme of unalpamation (fhe
scheme) 0l 391-394 of the Companivs Act, (956 i pplicable provisions of Comparies Act 2013 (to the extent apphicable) B accordance with the schonse RRPL, aergeed with the Company w e Apnl, 2614, The Honble Delii High Court frad
given its approval 10 the Scheme ons 18 Februuey 2016 and order was reccivad by the Company on 7 Apiil 2016 The approved acheme was fifod willy the Registrar of Companies on 37 Apiit 2016 and the Scheme becme elfoctive finm sudh date

Assets and liabitities, rights and obligation of the RRP), were transtenied into the Carnpany (ay provided in the Seheme)

sention 474v) of Income Tax Acl,
hpt tndder section 43¢V of 11
epantnent

to sts wholly owned subsidiay, and claimed exemplion under
for, wecondingly, capitel gaing claimod us

During 1Y 2012-13, Rajendra Ravindra Printing Private 1imited “Amatgansating Compsny” hadd sold ite certain land snd bunlding (equived s 1972y
1961 (I Act™). However, by virtue of mierger of RRPL, the subsidiany conypan 4 (0 be whally dwsied subsidiary of RRET, before expisy of 8 years fions the date of s
Act, would now be taxable in the year of tamsfer i to lrigger of section 474 of ' Act. Cansidering this, tex Hability for €335 anillion has been recognised in the books of acermts T Company hos fited an applicalion with the

n
R

COVID Disclosure
n view of COVID-19 femic, while developing the f relating o possible uncertainties s the business conditions becatse of the pandemic, the Conpany,

variable information ax available and considered the p 1 that may resull from COVID-19 on the eanying smount of its $3INE Counterpanty ¢
deposits and investments in mutual fands) and subsequent recoveries, past trends, crodit 1 profite of customens in case of trade roovivables and advances to vendors. The Conipany expeats to recovar the canying smoutst of the assets snd investnient
‘The Company while assessing Right of Use Asset and Investment, has considered past trend. future business projections, pesformed sensitivity analysis on the sssumptions used and based on comrent estiniates expects the canying amount of other wssets

will be recoverud and docs not foresee cithor sygmiticant downesizitg in the operations or any changes in fease tenns.

ements have wsed

as on the date of approval ol th sdalone finvneial
it risk i cuse of finaneial assets {comprising cush and cash equivslents, bank

s at the date of approval of these sandalone fnmcial statements. There

any future changes to the business and standadone Snancial statements

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has evatuated the impact of COVID 19 an its standalone financial statements, The impact of COVI 19 may differ from the estimates
sses followed in the standatone financiul statements closing process of the Company. The Company witl continue o nonilor s

have been no material changes m the controls or proc
dueto COVID-19.

ontgactual obligations and fiabifities that Gl due i near future inefuding sepayment of the Jebts
e that it will be able to reatize the collections on limely basis

The management, based on its curvent and future business plans, afler considering COVID 19 impact, has assessed that the Company s ability (o teel i
taken fiom hanks / financial institutions and their related covenants, is dependent wpon timely realization of debloss colicctions and subsequent sale of inventory. The management has uss:
duspite COVID 19 chatlenges and would be able to anvange sofficient working capita} facitities from banks/ financial intuitions, if' required,  ensure continuity of operations.

57 Other statutory information

(@) The Company do not have any Benuni property, where any proceading has been initiuted or pending against e Company for holding any Benami property

(b) The Company do vot have any transactions with companies struck of?,

(2) The Cotnpany have not traded or invested in Crypto eurrency or Virtual Currency deing the financial year.

(d) The Company have not advanced or foaned or invested funds 1o any other pesson or entity, including foreign entities (intenmediarics) with the understanding that the ntermediary shalt
(@) directly or indirectly fead or invest in other persons or enlities identificd in any manser whatsocver by or on behaff of the company (Ulimate DBeneficiaries
(i) provide any guarantee, secuity of the fike 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies

() The Company have not received any fond from any person or entity, including foreign entitics (Funding Pasty) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall
(i diveatly or indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ¢ Hitimate Beneficiaries) or

(if) provide any guarantee, security o the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiagies,
scateh or sivey o any

tion which is not recorded in the books of sccounts that las been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such a5

ax Adt, 1961

() The Company have not any such tran
other relevant provisions of the Income

red witful defaulter by any bank or financial institation or govenmment or any government authority,
arge is pending to be registered at ROC by the Company.

() The Compuny s not deel
(1) No charge/ satisfaction of ¢l

58 The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 23 May 2022

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the standalene financial statements,
As per our repoit of even date

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Vilias Publishing House Prifate Limited

Chartered Accountants
Finm Registration No.: 001076NN300013

Tarun Gupta
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Partner
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